ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 3, 2008
1:10 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Jay Ranras, Chair
Representati ve Nancy Dahl strom Vice Chair
Representati ve John Coghill

Representative Bob Lynn

Represent ati ve Ral ph Saruel s
Representati ve Max G uenberg
Representati ve Li ndsey Hol nes

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 414
“"An Act relating to the crine victimconpensation fund."

- MOVED HB 414 OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 355

"An Act requiring the disclosure of the identity of certain
persons, groups, and nongroup entities that expend noney in
support of or in opposition to ballot initiatives and the
aggregate anounts of significant contributions or expenditures
made by those persons, groups, and nongroup entities.”

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 255

“"An Act relating to dual sentencing of certain juvenile
of fenders; anmending Rule 24.1, Alaska Delinquency Rules; and
providing for an effective date."

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 414

SHORT TITLE: CRI ME VI CTI M COVPENSATI ON FUND
SPONSOR( S): JUDI Cl ARY

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -1- March 3, 2008



02/ 25/ 08
02/ 25/ 08
03/03/08

H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
H) JUD, FIN
H) JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

NN N

Bl LL: HB 355
SHORT TITLE: DI SCLOSURE OF CONTRI BUTI ONS: | NI TI ATl VES
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) JOHANSEN

02/ 06/ 08 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 06/ 08 (H JUD, FIN

02/ 13/ 08 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

02/ 13/ 08 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

02/ 22/ 08 (H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

02/ 22/ 08 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard
03/03/08 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

W TNESS REG STER

JANE W PI ERSON, Staff

to Representative Jay Ranras

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 414 on behalf of the sponsor,
t he House Judi ci ary Committee, whi ch S chaired by
Represent ati ve Ranras.

CERAD G GODFREY, Chair

Violent Crinmes Conpensation Board (VCCB)

Department of Adm nistration (DOA)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided coments and responded to
guestions during discussion of HB 414.

REPRESENTATI VE KYLE JOHANSEN

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of HB 355.

SONI A CHRI STENSEN, St af f

to Representative Kyle Johansen

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During discussion of HB 355, testified on
behal f of the sponsor, Representative Johansen.

CHRI STI NA ELLI NGSON, Acting Director

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 2- March 3, 2008



Al aska Public Ofices Conm ssion (APQOC)

Department of Adm nistration (DOA)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided coments and responded to
guestions during discussion of HB 355.

CH P THOVA
Juneau, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 355.

STEVE CLEARY, Executive Director

Al aska Public Interest Research G oup (AkPIRG
Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 355.

MARGARET PATON- WALSH, Assistant Attorney General

Labor and State Affairs Section

Cvil Division (Anchorage)

Department of Law (DQL)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Responded to questions during discussion of
HB 355.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R JAY RAMRAS called the House Judiciary Standing Conmmttee

nmeeting to order at 1:10:34 PM Representatives Samuel s,
Dahl strom Coghill, and Ranras were present at the call to
order. Representatives Lynn, Holnmes, Guenberg arrived as the

neeting was in progress.

HB 414 - CRI ME VI CTI M COVPENSATI ON FUND

1:11: 55 PM

CHAI R RAMRAS announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 414, "An Act relating to the crime victim
conpensation fund."

1:12: 06 PM

JANE W PIERSON, Staff to Representative Jay Ranras, Al aska
State Legislature, presented HB 414 on behalf of Representative
Ranras, chair of the House Judiciary Conmttee, sponsor. She
explained that the Violent Crines Conpensation Board (VCCB) was
established wunder AS 18.67 in 1972 to help mtigate the
financial hardships victins suffer as a direct result of violent

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 3- March 3, 2008



crine. The board may conpensate nedical expenses, counseling
costs, lost incone, |ost support, funeral expenses, and/or other
reasonabl e costs sustained by Al askan victins of violent crines.
The VCCB awards approximately 85 percent of its budget directly
to victins and/or their service providers. Based on the past
four years, the average anount the board awards annually is
$1, 345, 338.

M5. PIERSON stated that HB 414 would create a non general fund
(GF) program definition for the VCCB under AS 37.05.146(c).
Revenues could be placed directly into this fund and be matched

at $.60 on every dollar from federal grants. Therefore, the
VCCB coul d obtain additional funding without any additional cost
to the state. Funding sources for the VCCB include inmate

salaries, restitution paynents, permanent fund dividends (PFDs),
and paynents made by VCCB cl ai mants under repaynent agreenents.
However, those funds are currently deposited directly into the
state’s G- and any fund bal ance not expended is returned to the
GF. Again, this bill would allow the VCCB to retain unexpended
funds and obtain matching federal funds at the rate of $.60 per
state doll ar.

CHAIR RAMRAS that he is synpathetic with the intent of HB 414
since he has been a victimof property crime hinself.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM referred to the VCCB annual report, and
said that she reads that report and supports the work the VCCB
acconpl i shes. She relayed her support of HB 414, which, she
surm sed, would allow the VCCB the ability to roll wunexpended
funds forward.

1:17: 25 PM

GERAD G GODFREY, Chair, Violent Crinmes Conpensation Board
(VCCB), Departnment of Adm nistration (DOA), concurred with M.
Pierson's sunmation. He noted that when a claimant cones to the
VCCB he/she must sign a subrogation agreenent. The VCCB
realizes that sonme claimants will receive a settlenent award,
for exanple, for an accident involving a driver who was driving
under the influence (DU). Al t hough eventually the claim w |l
be settled, it may take considerable tinme, and, neanwhile, the
victims bills continue to accrue, oftentinmes when the person
cannot wor K. M. Godfrey highlighted that the VCCB awards are
for tangible |osses based on a fornmula, wth a maxi mum of
$40, 000. The claimant or his/her attorney will reinburse the
VCCB for the settlenent once awarded. He characterized the VCCB
award as a de facto loan, so when the settlenments are received,

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -4- March 3, 2008



the funds are directed to the general fund (GF) rather than to
t he VCCB. He too noted that the VCCB receives funding from

garni shed PFDs. Additionally, the VCCB received funding of
approxi mat el y $400, 000 during Gover nor Mur kowski ’ s
adm ni stration. He explained that if the VCCB can recoup

settlenment awards from subrogati on agreenents and court ordered
restitution or judgnents, then the VCCB nay becone self-
sust ai ni ng. He referred to a graph in nmenbers' packets that
illustrates the projected funding of the VCCB, and opined that
if HB 414 passes, the VCCB could eventually operate on interest
al one.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked whether the noney comng from
inmates’ PFDs is deposited into the GF and then appropriated to
t he VCCB

MR GODFREY  answer ed t hat t he | egi slature makes t he
appropriation but he is not sure of the appropriation process.
However, he noted, the largest percentage of the PFD is
appropriated to the Departnent of Corrections (DOC), which he
surm sed is appropriate since the DOC houses the innates.

M5. PI ERSON advi sed that garnished PFDs are first deposited into
the G- and are then allocated to the VCCB.

CHAI R RAMRAS, after first determning that no one else wished to
testify, closed public testinony on HB 414.

1:25: 26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM noved to report HB 414 out of committee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es. There being no objection, HB 414 was reported from the
House Judiciary Standing Commttee.

HB 355 - DI SCLOSURE OF CONTRI BUTI ONS: | NI TI ATI VES

1: 26: 20 PM

CHAI R RAMRAS announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 355, "An Act requiring the disclosure of the
identity of certain persons, groups, and nongroup entities that
expend noney in support of or in opposition to ballot
initiatives and t he aggregat e anount s of significant
contributions or expenditures nade by those persons, groups, and
nongroup entities.”

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 5- March 3, 2008



1:26: 44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KYLE JOHANSEN, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor,
explained that he had introduced HB 355 in order to begin
di scussions about the initiative process and the need for
openness and transparency of funding during that process. He
offered his concern that funding is obscured, and remarked upon
the inportance of requiring disclosure of an individual or a
group that funds ballot initiatives, regardless of whether the
group supports or opposes the ballot initiative. Legi sl ators
and potential legislators «currently nust disclose incone,
canpai gn contributions, and investnments, to provide the public a
basis for nmaking decisions about the people they elect. Thi s
bill would require disclosure of those who influence ballot
initiatives. He explained that his intent is to require ful
di scl osure of groups such that if a group in Womng is funding
a ballot initiative, the public has a right to know it.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN opined that when a question is on the
ballot, the issue becones a public-relations battle with little
di scussi on about the proposed change and is instead nore about
sl ogans. He acknow edged that HB 355 mght have to be altered
and that sonme issues may still need to be addressed.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUJELS asked who is currently allowed to
contribute f unds to or gani zati ons t hat sponsor bal | ot
initiatives.

1: 33: 40 PM

SONI A CHRI STENSEN, Staff to Representative Kyle Johansen, Al aska
State Legislature, on behalf of Representative Johansen,
sponsor, stated that there are no restrictions with regard to
who can contribute to ballot initiatives.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN offered that he did not believe that any
limt is inposed on the anobunt that can be contributed to
support ballot initiatives.

CHAI R RAMRAS described his experience in collecting signatures
for a ballot initiative, and acknow edged that it is a difficult

t ask. He nentioned two distinct aspects to ballot initiatives
as being collecting signatures and advocating for or against the
issue to be placed on the ballot. He relayed his own

experiences wth collecting signatures, and noted that although
he had initially been opposed to the legislation allowing a
sponsor of a ballot initiative to pay soneone to collect

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 6- March 3, 2008



signatures, [he no |onger is]. Additionally, he found sone
people would not support his initiative because they had
concerns about retribution.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN opined that if sonmeone wants to donate

money for a ballot initiative, he/ she should not fear
retribution. However, the contributor should be required to
di scl ose that donation. He said that although he supports the

initiative process, his min concern and the reason for
introducing HB 355 is that ballot initiatives have becone a
multimllion-dollar industry and so it is difficult for the

public to discern who is funding the ballot initiative. He
of fered his understanding that some businesses focus on ball ot
initiatives for profit. He stressed that citizens have a right

to know t he source of funding for ballot initiatives.

CHAIR RAMRAS stated said that he shares Representative
Johansen’s concern about outside interests “hijacking” ballot
initiatives.

1: 45: 43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS recalled the ballot initiative Chair
Ranras collected signatures for all sunmer long. He pointed out
that soneone could have spent mllions to oppose the ball ot
initiative and that it would be difficult to find out who paid
for the canpaign opposing the initiative.

CHAI R RAMRAS offered his wunderstanding that HB 355 would not
affect that aspect of ballot initiatives. However, he said his
exclusive concern is to protect the ability of individuals to
pl ace sonething on the ballot. He said that he supports full
di sclosure for donations by individuals and groups once the
initiative is on the ballot.

M5. CHRISTENSEN clarified that HB 355 would apply to any
conmmttee that spends or incurs $500 in expenditures and would
require the group to file wth the Alaska Public Ofices
Comm ssi on (APQC) .

CHAI R RAMRAS recalled that he helped collect 46,000 signatures
for the ballot initiative to limt the legislative session to 90
days, and that a group opposed to the initiative spent $1
mllion to oppose it. He asked whether a group opposing an
initiative is currently required to report and disclose its
source of funds on a ballot initiative.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -7- March 3, 2008



M5. CHRISTENSEN answered that currently the source of the
fundi ng woul d need to be discl osed.

CHAI R RAMRAS surnmised that HB 355 is limted to funding spent to
col | ect signatures.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN stated that his intention, regardl ess of
whether the legislation actually does so, is to require
financial disclosure for those who either collect signatures or
run a canpaign to support or oppose a ballot initiative.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES asked what specifically would be changed
by HB 355.

M5. CHRISTENSEN indicated that a sectional analysis is in
menbers' packets provide that information

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUJELS posed a scenario in which a group forns,
but its contributors are not known to the public.

CHAI R RAMRAS agr eed. He reiterated his earlier concern for
adverse inpacts on private citizens who seek to place an
initiative on the ballot.

1: 53: 30 PM

CHRI STINA ELLINGSON, Acting Director, Alaska Public Ofices
Comm ssion (APOC), Departnent of Administration (DOA), noted
that the APOC just addressed this reporting question at its
nmeeting in February 2008. She offered that under Section 4 of
HB 355, the reporting statute would be changed by deleting “an
initiative”. She explained that people nust gather signatures
to get an initiative, referendum or a recall on the ballot, and
that currently, AS 15.13.110(e) identifies when reports are
required, such that each group is required to report
contributions and expenditures 30 days after filing wth the
i eutenant governor and 10 days after the end of each cal endar

quarter. However, under HB 355, the reports would be required
the 15th day of each nonth before the election and two weeks
prior to the election. She stated that the rest of bill
pertains to Division of Elections natters. Currently, once the

first 100 signatures are obtained by a “loosely fornmed” group,
then that group nmust file with the APCC

CHAI R RAMRAS relayed his understanding that HB 355 attenpts to

have a “loosely fornmed” group provide fuller disclosure to the
publi c.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 8- March 3, 2008



MB. ELLI NGSON agr eed. However, she opined that this bill does

nmore [than that]. She clarified that the first filing is
generally done by the sponsor of the initiative. She
characterized the initiatives’ sponsors as often being a
“handful of people” who will register as a group. She further

noted that sonetines the group is represented by attorneys who
are hired to assist them

1: 59: 26 PM

CH P THOVA stated that he supports HB 355, and that he has been
involved in three |ocal initiatives and two statew de
initiatives, and that in each instance the opposition to the
initiatives was overwhelm ng and the funding sources were not
docunent ed. He said that he is not a |obbyist nor is he
conpensated in any way for his presence before the commttee

He offered that he joined the cruise ship initiative since he
thought it was a good cause. He relayed that Joe Celdhof, a
Juneau attorney, authorized himto report to the conmttee that
the cruise ship initiative received one outside contribution in
t he anmount of $10,000 for advertising purposes. An addi ti onal

$30, 000 was raised to obtain signatures, which were collected by
volunteers or paid signature gatherers. He noted that the
cruise ship initiative had strong |ocal support, especially from
the Alaska Native Sisterhood (ANS), which was concerned that
cruise ships would affect their subsistence foods. He pointed
out that the opposition spent over $2 nillion to fight the
initiative, though he did not know who furnished the funding for
over 27 mailers and the television advertising canmpaign to
conbat this initiative. However, he stated that he later
| earned that the Northwest Cruise Ship Association based in
Vancouver, Canada, provided the funding through PacWest, a major
group form Mam, Florida. He said that his group prevailed in
its efforts, although he opined that the group could have won by
much greater margin if the funding source had been known and
publ i ci zed.

MR. THOMA suggested that the bill should also apply to statew de
muni ci pal ballot initiatives, that registered |obbyists should
be prohibited from donating to any ballot initiative canpaign,
and that proposed AS 15.45.780 contain a "top ten" contributor

list for all ballot initiative advertising such that anyone
contributing over $500 or $1,000 to a ballot initiative canpaign
should be 1listed. He recalled one local initiative to ban
fluoride in drinking water. Supposedly the issue was locally

funded; however, the Anerican Dental Society primarily funded an

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -9- March 3, 2008



opposi tion canpai gn. Additionally, he offered that Al aska
doesn't have a professional signature gathering group. He
concluded with his support for HB 355.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL referred to the reporting requirenments of
the bill, and asked M. Thoma whether he thought the
requi renents were reasonable and if he thought that the proposed
requirenents would affect how people would conduct ballot
initiative advertisenent canpaigns.

MR. THOVA answered that advertising decisions generally nust be
nmade early on, so he does not think that the changes to the
reporting requirenent would affect advertising. However, he
stressed that a cunulative donor list should be filed wth any
advertising for ballot initiatives.

2:08: 49 PM

STEVE CLEARY, Executive Director, Al aska Public Interest
Research Goup (AKPIRG, after relaying that AkPIRG has been
operating in Al aska since 1974, has approxi mately 1,600 nenbers,
and that its mssion is to protect consuners and advocate for
open and honest governnment in Alaska, stated that AkPIRG
supports HB 355, which he characterized as “a great step for
Al aska.” He too remarked that ballot initiatives are an
i mportant part of the |awraking process in Alaska. He said that
AkPI RG believes in full disclosure, which he characterized as
essential for open governnent, and that the public has a right
to know who is funding a ballot initiative. The current system
allows and rewards secrecy by allowng a group to pay signature
gatherers and put forth an initiative wthout having to disclose
the source of funding for its ballot initiative canpaign. He
stated that AKPIRG believes that Al askans should know the
funding source in the signature gathering phase and not just

after an initiative has been placed on the ballot. He
acknow edged that once sonething is on the ballot, the issue
achieves sone |egitinacy. Therefore, it is «critical that

Al askans know, prior to that phase, the sources of the funding
for the signature gathering.

MR. CLEARY said that the AKPIRG is currently working on the
Clean Elections Ballot initiative. Alaskans for Cl ean Elections
chose to disclose its contributions during the signature
gat hering phase even though it is not currently required to do
so. In contrast to that, the “anti-corruption” initiative wuld
negate the Clean Elections initiative, he opined. That group is
not required to list its contributors or expenses during the

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 10- March 3, 2008



signature gathering phase. He said that the AkPIRG believes

that the bulk of the “anti-corruption” initiative funding is
comng from M. Howard Rich, a New York business tycoon who has
funded ballot neasures all across the United States. Simlar

measures have been thrown off the ballot in Mntana, he offered,
such as one sponsored by a group naned “Mntanans in Action”
even though its funding sources originated in New York.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS asked M. Cleary if he has had experience
wi th subgroups donating funding to the main group that organizes
to support or oppose an initiative, such that it is difficult to
ascertain the woriginal source of funding for +the ballot
initiative, regardless of whether it 1is in the signature
gat hering phase or the actual ballot initiative canpaign

MR. CLEARY stated that he has not experienced such, but would
research that issue further

2:14: 02 PM

MARGARET PATON-WALSH, Assistant Attorney Ceneral, Labor and
State Affairs Section, Cvil D vision (Anchorage), Departnment of
Law (DOL), stated that the DOL has one potential problem with
HB 355. She referred to Section 6 of proposed AS 15.45.780.
She stated that a potential First Amendnent concern was raised
by a U S. Suprenme Court decision, MlIntyre v. the Ohio El ections

Comm ssion, 514 U. S. 335(1995). In that case, Ms. Mlintyre
handed out flyers at a school board neeting in opposition to a
bond proposal. The requirenent that political advertising would

include the nane of the commttee person, group, oOr nongroup
entity that was behind it, would run afoul of First Amendnent
protections for anonynous speech that were outlined in MliIntyre,

she opi ned. In that case, the court addressed Chio' s interest
regarding public information, which is «clearly what IS
notivating HB 355, she surm sed. The court found the state's
interest insufficient to justify trunping a person's right to
anonynous speech. Thus, she expressed concern about the
constitutionality of proposed Section 6, absent sone attenpt to
define political advertising. The current election statutes

defines “conmunication” in AS 15.13, a narrower definition that
woul d exclude flyers that the U S. Suprene Court found were
protected in MlIntyre, she opined.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked whether the contribution anpunt

matters enough to inpose a $500 limt, and whether a threshold
was indicated in Mlntyre.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -11- March 3, 2008



M5. PATON-WALSH answered that the funding issue is not very
clear in Mlintyre. She offered that the court makes sone
reference to the small scale of Ms. Mintyre's activities.
However, the court did not make a clear distinction, nor is it
the central part of the analysis of the issue. She opined that
it is possible that sone argunent could be nmade based on the
t hreshol d anbunt. She said she could not predict, but her sense
is that given the cost of reproducing flyers at Kinkos, it could
be that $500 would be too low a threshold to cover activities
such as those engaged in by Ms. Mlintyre. Even if the
threshold were raised, it is not clear if that would be a
conpel l'ing basis for the distinction, she surni sed.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked whether a person who contributes
$50 to a political canpaign could assert the right to anonymty.
Currently, he noted, that person is required to furnish nane and
address along with his/her contribution.

M5. PATON-WALSH answered that a person could not assert the
right to anonymty, which is nore closely connected to political
speech; so the financial contribution, although it could be
characterized as a political statenent, is in sone ways
di stinguished by the US. Suprene Court as a political “flyer.”
If a person wites out his/her support or opposition to an
initiative and posts it in various places around a city, that
“posting” is considered a direct expression of the person’s
political speech.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL acknowl edged that the court has already
determined that people have a right to know who nmade the
contribution, for exanple, when soneone nmakes a contribution of
$500 or nore.

2:20:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS rel ayed that he nust disclose the source
of advertising expenditures by listing “paid for by” on the
advertisenent. He asked why anonymty on expenditures for a

group in ballot initiative situations is allowed.

M5. PATON-WALSH answered the court hasn't actually addressed
that issue of “paid for by” a particular candidate. The court
has only made a distinction between elections for office and
ballot or bond initiatives. She advised that MIntyre addresses
an “issue” election and not an election of an individual, and
that she does not know the extent to which that anonymty
protection would expand if that issue cane before the court.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -12- March 3, 2008



She explained that there were three opinions are expressed in
Ml ntyre: the mjority opinion, concurring opinions, and a
di ssent opi ni on.

M5. PATON-WALSH again offered that one solution to address the
constitutional issues in the bill wuld be to add a definition
of political advertising that excludes the areas of known
jurisprudence protections by the court and |eaves open areas
that have not yet been determ ned by the court. She opined the
current definition of conmunication in AS 15.13.090 essentially
provi des protection for the types of speech engaged in by Ms.
Mclntyre but not for many ot her things.

2:23: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked why there is anonymty for initiatives
but not for an individual’'s canpaign, particularly given that
nost elected officials are elected due to their stance on
I Ssues. He asked whether other states have passed simlar
| egislation and, if so, whether constitutional challenges have
been raised with respect to anonymty.

M5. PATON-WALSH answered that Mlintyre is essentially the
preem nent case on this issue. The state of GChio had prohibited
anonynous |eaflet advertising, she said, and so Ms. Mlintyre
was fined under that statute, but the U'S. Supreme Court ruled

it unconstitutional. She opined that the “paid for by” |anguage
requirenent is a standard provision found in many other states
and at the federal level, and that a huge gray area exists

between what Ms. Mintyre did and the “paid for by” issue.
Again, Mlntyre provides the only clues as to what nmay happen
with regard to anonynous speech. She said that she is not able
to say with certainty whether something will be constitutiona
since so little information exists.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said that he struggles to understand why a
contribution to a political canpaign cannot be anonynobus, yet a
contribution to an initiative can be.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN offered that he shares that sane
concern.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES referred to page 2, |lines 20-31, of
proposed Section 5, and asked about the reporting requirenents
for a group that raises noney for several purposes and
contributes nmore than $500 per year. Wuld the organization or

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 13- March 3, 2008



the individuals or nenbers that contributed to the organization
be required to be disclosed as contri butors?

M5. ELLINGSON answered that ballot issues just report the

fundi ng source. She posed a scenario such that if a group
decided to support an initiative, it wuld remt the funds from
its own funds. Under current disclosure law a "group"” is

triggered when it solicits noney fromits nenbers; otherw se an
entity could sinply nmake a donation that is derived from its
general nmenbership fees.

2:31:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES surmised, then, that if a group nmade a
donation from its general nmenbership funds, the only reporting
required would be for the single donation from it for the
purpose of a ballot initiative. She asked whether the group
would be required to report if it specifically solicited funds
for a ballot initiative.

M5. ELLINGSON answered that the group would be required to
report and woul d have to nane itself.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES referred to proposed AS 15.45.760, which
requires that the conmttee nanme nust include the ballot title
and the word “for” or the word “against”. She inquired as to
whet her, in actual practice, nultiple groups would have the sane
name.

M5. ELLI NGSON answered no, and explained an outside entity had
tried to tie up every conceivable variation of a nanme so that
others could not wuse it. She noted that nobst groups devise
their own nane.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES stated that she did not find a definition
of “initiative commttee” in HB 355.

VB. ELLI NGSON answered that initiatives fall under t he
definition of “group” in statute.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES referred to proposed AS 15.45.760, and
opi ned that several groups could have simlar nanes. She asked
whether multiple groups are formed or if it is usually just one
group “for” and one group “against” an initiative.

M5. ELLINGSON answered that sonetimes nultiple groups are
formed. Although proposed AS 15.45.760 pertains to the Division

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -14- March 3, 2008



of Elections, some provisions in HB 355 probably should fal
under APCC s canpai gn di scl osure purview, she suggested.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES expressed concern that if nore than one
group is forned, they could be limted with regard to what nanme
they get to choose.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL surmised that the titles of the groups
would not lend itself to “a clean debate.”

2: 36: 46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked the sponsor to al so consider what
aspects of the bill APOC shoul d adm ni ster.

CHAI R RAMRAS asked Ms. Ellingson to elaborate on the genesis of
the requirenent for disclosure for canpaign contributions but
not for initiatives.

M5. ELLINGSON said that that APOC decision arose out of severa
court cases. Up until 1997, statutes stated that disclosure
applied to activities that are intended to influence the outcone
of the election. Thus, an argunment could be nmade that w thout a
guestion on the ballot, there isn't an election. The conmmi ssion
hel d discussions on whether it is constitutional to require
di sclosure since a group may not gather enough signatures to
place the initiative on the ballot and hold an el ection.

CHAIR RAMRAS asked why disclosure is required even if the
initiative never nakes it to the ballot, particularly given that
many initiatives fail.

M5. ELLINGSON agreed. She offered that sone groups voluntarily
di scl ose their signature-gathering funds.

CHAI R RAMRAS surm sed that once an organi zation advertises that
it is collecting signatures, the group would need to discl ose.

MS. ELLINGSON clarified that if a group is collecting signatures
and requests people to vote for or against the initiative in the
event that it is on the ballot, the group nust report and
di scl ose the contributors.

M5. ELLINGSON, in response to a question, answered that a group
that is only in the signature-gathering stage would not be
required to disclose since an election mght not ultimtely be
hel d. She pointed out that candidates and groups have different

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -15- March 3, 2008



standards for reporting requirenents, and opined that candi dates
are held to a higher standard. Furthernore, if a candidate ran
for office and later withdrew, he/she would still be required to
report his/her expenditures and distribution of funds.

CHAI R RAMRAS opined that a person who runs for office is fully

engaged in running for office. If that person withdraws from
the race, he/she is out of the race. In the case of a ball ot
initiative, until a person submts the signatures and requests
certification, the ballot initiative will not be on the ballot,

and once those signatures are submtted, the person then | oses
custody of the ballot initiative.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN offered his concern that |isting nanes of
contributors would have the effect of creating a database of
peopl e who support or oppose an initiative. He offered an
exanpl e of groups such as Pl anned Parenthood and Al aska Right to
Li fe, whose goals are dianmetrically opposed to one anot her.

2:44: 47 PM

MS. ELLI NGSON surmised that groups could contribute $1,000 to an
initiative group, and that group could form a separate arm to
solicit funds for specific ballot issues. She offered that
currently, about four groups have forned whose specific purpose
is for a ballot initiative and the groups’ nane reflects its

pur pose. In response to [coments], she agreed that the groups
could contribute to candidates or a ballot initiative, but that
the list of contributors is already on record. Thus, no new

list of <contributors would be created, because such groups
al ready have a list of their contributors on file.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS argued that an organization could form
another arm and that arm could contribute to candidates and the
public will still not know the source of the contributions.

MS. ELLINGSON answered that the public can sinply review the
reporting by the secondary group. She advised that ballot
initiatives “enjoy the ability of being able to collect as much
noney as they want from any source that they want.”

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS stressed that the point of HB 353 is to
identify any noney that is collected that is intended to
i nfluence public policy in Al aska regardless of whether or not
an initiative is successfully placed on the ballot. The public
should know the source of the funds, he opined. He posed a
scenario in which an organization contributes $1 mllion to a

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 16- March 3, 2008



bal | ot measure, and opined that if the original source of the $1
mllion is unknown, then the goal of the bill will not have been
nmet . He said, “The goal is to have a transparent process so we
know who is trying to influence public policy in the State of
Al aska, whether it is the Sierra Cub [or] ExxonMobi
Corporation ....”

M5. ELLI NGSON answered that disclosure is required at the tine
the person nmekes a contribution to the organization to inform
the public about an issue. For exanple, several entities that
favor one side of an issue but which may not be located in
Alaska can contribute large sunms of noney, t hough the
contributions nust all be disclosed as being to the group they
contribute to or nmust be listed as an independent expenditure.
Thus, the public can identify whether the source is froma |arge
conpany or an individual contributor. She recalled one ball ot
initiative that addressed same-sex marri ages. One of the mmjor
contributors was the Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-Day
Saints, widely knowmn as the LDS Church or the Mrnon Church from
Utah; although it reported its contributions of $150,000 to one
of the groups, it was not required to reveal who nmade the
i ndi vi dual contributions to the church.

2:51:25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG offered his wunderstanding that the
Mclntyre decision provides for the right of anonynous free
speech in political situations in certain cases. He asked
whether, in the event that the |egislature cannot control the
right of a group to disclose contributions, the state would have
the right to require that the group disclose that it had refused
to reveal its financial sources in election panphlet material.

M5. PATON-WALSH offered to research that issue further and

respond in witing. She offered a distinction that the
protection for anonynous speech pertains to a published
statenent of a political position. She posed a scenario in

which a person who wites an advertisenent in the form of a
flyer against a proposition does not need to sign the materi al
However, if the person spends noney to advertise, hel/she mnust
di scl ose the funding.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG surm sed that that would pertain to the
| anguage in proposed AS 15.13. 780.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -17- March 3, 2008



M5. PATON-WALSH agreed, and offered that her concern is solely
confined to proposed AS 15.13.780 regarding the issue of
anonymty of speech.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG suggested that a renedy to the
constitutional concern could be to add the phrase, “or the fact
that the author of the advertising refused to reveal the
source.”

M5. PATON- WALSH said she woul d research that issue further.

CHAI R RAMRAS asked whet her APOC supports the changes proposed in
HB 355 with respect to the signature-gathering portion of the
bill.

2:57:43 PM

MS5. ELLINGSON referred to proposed AS 15.13.110(e), and noted
that it states that the first report will be within 30 days
after the first filing with the |ieutenant governor and
quarterly thereafter; proposed AS 15.13.110(e) read:

A group forned to sponsor an initiative, a referendum

or a recall shall report 30 days after its first
filing wwth the |ieutenant governor. Thereafter, each
group shall report within 10 days after the end of

each calendar quarter on the contributions received
and expenditures made during the preceding cal endar
guarter wuntil reports are due wunder (a) of this
section.

M5. ELLINGSON explained that [APOC] staff has never required
di sclosure during signature gathering wunless a group is
advocating for or against a ballot neasure.

CHAIR RAMRAS recalled his experience in collecting signatures
and noted that since his group was not advocating for a
position, his report was zero.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS asked whether HB 355 is intended to ban
groups from contributing and only allow individuals to nmake
contributions, wth no limt on anounts, yet requiring full
di scl osure. He al so asked whether the bill's current |anguage
woul d pass constitutional nuster

CHAI R RAMRAS pointed out that the Fairbanks North Star Borough
(FNSB) raised $150,000 for a ballot initiative to raise property

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 18- March 3, 2008



tax exenptions. He asked whether such an initiative would be
af fected by passage of the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS opined that the FNSB couldn't contribute
at all on statewide initiatives since funding would be solely by
i ndi vi dual s.

CHAIR RAMRAS surmsed that if contributions were |limted to
individuals, then the FNSB would be precluded from altering
property tax exenptions.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS agr eed.

M5. PATON- WALSH advi sed that there is no First Anendnent concern
rai sed by the hypothetical exanple because an individual is not
allowed to nmake an anonynous contribution. She offered to
research that issue further for the commttee.

3:03: 57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked Ms. Paton-Walsh to al so consider
Article 11  of the Alaska State Constitution and the
constitutional decisions rendered by the Al aska Suprene Court in
conjunction with the fundanental right of association. He
opi ned that severe problenms would result if the |egislature were
to ban the right of association.

M5. PATON-WALSH offered to research that issue further. She
of fered her wunderstanding that Representative Samuels was not
suggesting that groups be prevented from formng in support of
or in opposition to ballot initiatives. However, anot her
organi zation <could not contribute to a ballot initiative
conmttee in order to conceal the original source of its
f undi ng.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG opined that the group would sinply
offer that its reason to band together pertained to the right to
associate and not to concealing its contributors. He said he is
interested in who would admnister the various parts of the
bill, and opined that the APOC is well suited to adm nister much
of the bill. He then referred to proposed AS 15.45.780, and
asked whether Mlntyre applies and, if so, if a group chooses to
be anonynous, whether that fact shall be disclosed in all
adverti si ng.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES referred to |anguage on page 3, lines 9-
10, regarding naming the initiative commttees.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -19- March 3, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked whether the findings and intent
provision IS necessary. He referred to proposed AS
15.13.110(g), and asked what other reporting requirenents are
needed to determne the entire schedul e.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN offered his strong support for the concept

of the bill. He stated that he would |like to see [the
provi sions  of statutes pertaining to] contributions for
initiatives be aligned wth those for candidates. He
highlighted that the process should be as transparent as
possi bl e. Furthernore, if corporations cannot contribute to an

i ndi vidual's canpaign, then why should corporations be allowed
to contribute to ballot initiatives.

3:09: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS surm sed that generally the U S. Suprene
Court has found it is far different to contribute to individuals
than it is to contribute to ideas.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG opined that HB 355 raises inportant
constitutional issues that need to be consi dered.

[ HB 355 was hel d over.]
ADJ OQURNNMENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Judiciary Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 3:10 p. m

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 20- March 3, 2008



